
 
 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

Meeting: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Date and Time: FRIDAY, 26 APRIL 2024, AT 1.00 PM 
 

Place: COUNCIL CHAMBER - APPLETREE COURT, BEAULIEU 
ROAD, LYNDHURST, SO43 7PA 
 

Enquiries to: Email: democratic@nfdc.gov.uk 
Joe Tyler 
Tel: 023 8028 5982 
 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Members of the public may watch this meeting live on the Council’s website. 

Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public 
participation scheme: 

(a) on items within the General Purposes and Licensing Committee’s terms of 
reference which are not on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls the 
public participation item; and/or 

(b) on individual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item.  
Speeches may not exceed three minutes. 

Anyone wishing to speak should contact the name and number shown above no later 
than 12.00 noon on Tuesday, 23 April 2024. 

 
Kate Ryan 
Chief Executive 
 
Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA 
www.newforest.gov.uk 
 
This agenda can be viewed online (https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk).   

It can also be made available on audio tape, in Braille and large print. 
 

 

AGENDA 
 Apologies 

 

1.   MINUTES  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2024 as a correct record. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 

https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.newforest.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7C%7Cda8bae757d184b194a9e08dabcb628f4%7C09969afd0c3043739fd3ce5bbbf19141%7C0%7C0%7C638029787794355893%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pyITIEABv8zOwjB4qtZ8V3vP2XsLS7LRjl2qb%2F8qQYI%3D&reserved=0


 
 

 

agenda item.  The nature of the interest must also be specified. 
 
Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services 
prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 To receive any public participation in accordance with the Council’s public 
participation scheme. 
 

4.   APPLICATION TO AMEND SITE LICENCE CONDITIONS AT FLEUR DE LYS 
CARAVAN PARK (Pages 3 - 76) 

 For the Committee to consider the application to amend the site licence conditions 
at Fleur de Lys Caravan Park and increase the number of caravans on the site to 
12. 

 
To: Councillors Councillors 

 
 Neil Tungate (Chairman) 

Richard Young (Vice-Chairman) 
Steve Clarke 
Jack Davies 
Philip Dowd 
Allan Glass 
David Harrison 
 

David Hawkins 
Nigel Linford 
Colm McCarthy 
Neil Millington 
Dave Penny 
Alvin Reid 
 

 



GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE – 26 APRIL 2024 
 

APPLICATION TO AMEND SITE LICENCE CONDITIONS AT 
FLEUR DE LYS CARAVAN PARK 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That if the Committee decides to approve the application to increase the number of 

caravans on the Fleur de Lys Park to 12, it does so subject to the following condition 
being added to the site licence conditions: 

 
1.1.1 The new caravan (number 2) is permissible on the site subject to the following: 

 The existing pitch for Caravan 14, including the curved curbed area to the 
front is retained. 

 A concrete slabbed or similar footpath is created to connect the foot of the 
stairs of Caravan 14 with the roadway to the west of the pitch. 

 The new caravan (number 2) shall be a minimum of 2 metres from the 
roadway, including to the south, 

 The parking space for Caravan 11 is adjusted to enable a vehicle parking 
at the adjacent caravan, number 12, to safely manoeuvre into and out of its 
parking space without passing less than 2 metres from the new Caravan 
(number 2). 

 A parking space for Caravan 14 is to be provided on the site which 
complies with site conditions. 

 All the above works must be completed within 28 days of the issue of the 
amended site licence and thereafter to be continuously maintained in 
accordance with the requirements of this Condition. 

 
1.2 However, should the committee determine that having considered the legislation, 

guidance, information in this report, and information provided at Committee, that the 
provision of the additional caravan detrimentally affects the amenity of the residents on 
the Site, and/or poses a risk to the health and safety of residents and visitors, then the 
application should be refused. 

 
 
2. INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 Fleur de Lys Park is a licensed caravan site in the New Forest District.  The licence 

limits the maximum number of residential caravans permitted on the site to 11.  A copy 
of the site licence and conditions is contained at Appendix 1. 
 

2.2 The site is situated in the village of Pilley near to Lymington.  It is roughly square in 
shape and is bounded by a footpath to the west, open fields to the south, and disused 
agricultural buildings to the east.  The site is accessed via an entranceway to the north 
from Pilley Hill across land to the side of the Fleur de Lys public house.  Until August 
2023 the site consisted of 11 caravans positioned around the edges of the site, with a 
gravelled open area to the centre. 

 
2.3 An application was received on 19 December 2024 from the owners Mr C and Mrs K 

Fitzgerald, to increase the number of caravans on the site from 11 to 12. 
 

3

Agenda Item 4



2.4 The committee is requested to consider the application and to determine, based on 
information provided in this report and at the Committee meeting, whether to agree to 
the proposed site licence amendment and if so on what conditions, if any. 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 On 11 August 2023 an additional caravan was placed on the site, taking the total 

number of caravans on the site to 12. 
 

3.2 It was added despite New Forest District Council (NFDC) informing the owners that the 
licence did not allow for this additional caravan and requesting they contact the 
department prior to placing it on the site. 

 
3.3 This created a breach of the caravan site licence held by Mr C and Mrs K Fitzgerald; 

Condition 1(i) states that the total number of mobile homes on the site shall not exceed 
11 at any time. 
 

3.4 The licence holders were written to in August 2023, asking whether they intended to 
remove the caravan or apply to amend the site licence.  Mrs Fitzgerald replied in 
September 2023 stating it was her understanding that the home complied with the site 
licence conditions. 

 
3.5 Fleur de Lys Park has planning permission that does not limit the number of caravans 

that may be located on the site.  There are therefore no planning restrictions in place, 
and the relevant legislation for consideration of this matter is that relating to the 
licensing of caravan sites. 

 
3.6 On 1 December 2023 the Council served Compliance Notices on Mr C and Mrs K 

Fitzgerald requiring removal of the additional caravan and the reinstatement of the 
gravelled open area. 
 

3.7 On 19 December 2023 the applicants applied to amend the caravan site licence.  The 
variation sought is to amend condition 1(i) to read ‘the total number of mobile homes 
on the site shall not exceed 12 (twelve) at any time’. 
 

3.8 On 22 December 2023, the licence holders appealed the Compliance Notices served 
to the First Tier Property Tribunal. 

 
3.9 On 12 February 2024, the Council responded to the licence holders’ solicitor to advise 

it would not object to an application being made to the Tribunal for a stay in the 
proceedings.  This was to enable the site licence amendment application to be fully 
considered.  The Council is unaware if this happened but can confirm that no 
correspondence has been received from the Tribunal to date. 

 
 
4. HISTORY 
 
4.1 In 1999, a previous owner of Fleur de Lys Park applied to place a single additional 

home on the site, to increase the number to 12.  This application was rejected on 
application and subsequently on appeal.  At that time it was noted that existing 
caravans on the site, numbers 3, 4, 5 and 6, were positioned less than 3 metres from 
the boundary of the site.  This is contrary to condition 1(vii) of the site licence 
conditions which states that caravans must be at least 3 metres from the site 
boundary.  Whilst the breach was accepted for the lifespan of those caravans, any new 

4



caravan brought onto the site in those locations, would be considered against the site 
licence conditions. 
 

4.2 The location of these caravans closer to the edge of the site essentially created 
additional space at the centre and at the entrance to the site, which would not be 
available should the caravans be replaced and positioned according to the site licence 
conditions (unless caravan dimensions were reduced). 

 
4.3 In 2014, the current owners of the site applied to amend the site licence, to increase 

the number of caravans on the site from 11 to 12, and to amend the separation 
distance between number 14 and the proposed new home from 6 metres to 5.25 
metres.  This application was considered by the General Purposes and Licensing 
Committee in December 2015, and was rejected.  The Committee resolved that an 
additional home would affect the visual amenity of the site and have an impact upon 
the privacy of residents at numbers 12 and 14. 
 

4.4 In April 2016 the site owners approached the Council again to gauge whether to 
submit a new application to amend the site licence.  In this proposal, the separation 
distance between the proposed new caravan and number 14 had been increased from 
5.25m to 5.75m.  In reply, the Council’s legal services advised the licence holders to 
think carefully before submitting a formal application, as whilst any application would 
be considered on its merits, it was pointed out that previous application to place a 
caravan in a similar location had been unsuccessful.  A formal application was not 
received. 

 
4.5 In March 2022, the site owners again contacted the Council regarding the feasibility of 

adding a new home to the site in the area previously refused.  This followed 
information received from New Forest National Park Planning Authority (NFNPA) that 
indicated that planning permission would not be required for one additional caravan.  
The advice from NFNPA however, also stated that the addition of any new caravan 
would need to comply with the caravan site licence. 
 

4.6 The site owners confirmed that the proposal to place an additional caravan on the site 
was unchanged from previous proposals and therefore, the Council wrote back to 
advise against applying due to the unchanged proposal. – see Appendix 2.  An 
application was not received. 

 
 
5. LEGAL POSITION 
 
5.1 Caravan site licensing is controlled by The Caravan Sites and Control of Development 

Act 1960, as amended by the Mobile Homes Act 2013. 
 
5.2 Section 3 of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 describes the 

circumstances under which a local authority may issue a site licence in respect of land 
to be used as a caravan site.  It confirms that a licence may be issued ‘if, and only if’ 
the land has the benefit of planning permission for use as a caravan site. 
 

5.3 Section 5 of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 enables 
conditions to be attached to a caravan site licence as the local authority considers 
necessary or desirable to impose on the occupier of the land in the interests of 
residents of the site, or of any other person. 

 
5.4 Conditions which the local authority can impose, and which are relevant to this case 

include: 
 

5



 section 5(a) restricting the total number of caravans which are stationed on the 
land; 

 section 5(c) regulating the positions in which caravans are stationed on the land 
for the purposes of human habitation; and, 

 section 5(d) for securing the taking of any steps for preserving or enhancing the 
amenity of the land. 

 
5.5 The local authority should not attach conditions to the licence which are unduly 

burdensome to the site licence holder.  To assist the local authority, when applying any 
conditions to a site licence, the local authority must have regard to model standards 
specified by the Minister.  Model standards represent the standards normally to be 
expected as a matter of good practice on caravan sites and should be applied with 
regard to the particular circumstances of the site. 
 

5.6 The site licence conditions attached to the licence were issued with respect to the 
Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England.  

 
 
6. CURRENT APPLICATION 
 
6.1 The current application seeks to retrospectively regularise the position created with an 

additional caravan placed on the site by the licence holders, as they had not applied 
and received approval to do this prior to installing the caravan. 

 
6.2 There are strong similarities between this application and previous applications, in that 

the home on the site is almost the same size as previously proposed (34’ x 14’) and is 
positioned in the same area of the site.  

 
6.3 The application differs from previous applications as the caravan is positioned 6 

metres from number 14 (as opposed to 5.25m), and has been moved 1 metre to the 
east, facilitated by the owners purchasing a 1 metre strip of the front garden of plot 12.  
This has had the effect of slightly widening the gravelled entrance to the site as it 
passes the caravan.  

 
6.4 Prior to its siting, all eleven homes on the caravan site surrounded an open gravelled 

area which vehicles travelled over to access the parking area of each home.  The new 
home has been placed on part of this central area, directly adjacent to numbers 12 and 
14.  Appendix 3 shows before and after photographs of the location. 

 
6.5 The Council has been corresponding with Apps Legal Limited, who are representing 

the applicants, and providing information in support of the application.  A scale plan of 
the location of the caravan on the site has been provided as Appendix 4, and the 
proposed extent of the new pitch has been provided and is shown in Appendix 5. 

 
 
7. MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
Spacing between caravans and privacy 
 
7.1 Site licence condition 2(i) states that (subject to exemptions) caravans are to be at 

least 6 metres from each other. 
 
7.2 The new caravan is at least 6 metres from any other caravan.  
 
7.3 The model standards 2008 explanatory notes refer to privacy of residents when 

considering spacing between caravans.  The proposed patio/garden area of the new 
property will be at its closest 1.4 m from the home on plot 14.  Depending upon any 

6



fencing erected between the caravans, residents of both homes will be able to see 
through windows into neighbouring homes and the patio area.  This could be 
detrimental to the privacy of the occupiers of both caravans.  (See photograph 5 of 
Appendix 3. 

 
7.4 Whilst the spacing condition is complied with, the Committee should consider whether 

the position of the new home relative to number 14 affords sufficient privacy to all 
residents. 

 
 
Proximity of new caravan to roadway 
 
7.5 Condition 2(ii) states that no caravan is to be less than 2 metres from a road.  

Photograph 6 of Appendix 3 shows the gravelled area adjacent to the new home and 
that access to and egress from the parking space to number 12 (to the left of the 
vehicle in the photograph) is seriously impeded.  Parking a vehicle in the space would 
involve passing less than 2 metres from the new home. 

 
7.6 The applicants contest that the gravelled area of the site is a roadway and that it is a 

“private accessway where a handful of private homes are accessed from the one and 
therefore, a vehicle can access the parking space by passing less than 2 metres from 
the new caravan.  They also comment that the gravelled area in the vicinity is 9 metres 
wide, which is wider than typical caravan site roadways. 

 
7.7 The applicants also assert that the 2-metre condition was drafted with consideration to 

the privacy of occupants from passers-by and not for health and safety reasons.  
 

7.8 The Council maintains this is a roadway and it is appropriate to retain a 2-metre space 
between the caravan and areas where vehicles pass by for the health and safety of 
residents of the caravan. 
 

7.9 Notwithstanding the above, the site licence holders have expressed a willingness to 
relocate the parking space allocated to number 11 if necessary. 

 
 
Parking space for number 14 and retention of plot 
 
7.10 The existing long-standing parking bay for number 14 is in front of the home to the 

east of the curved section (shown on Appendix 4).  The applicant proposes that the 
garden / patio of the new caravan will be in this location, which will require the 
relocation of the parking space.  

 
7.11 A new parking bay for number 14 has been proposed to be sited outside plot 14, in 

between the curved kerb and the new caravan.  Appendix 6 is photograph showing 
the proposed location.  

 
7.12 Condition 2(iv)(g) states that whilst cars may be parked in the separation distance 

between caravans, any car must be at least 3 metres from a neighbouring caravan. 
The parking space as indicated does not comply with this requirement as it is less than 
3 metres from the new caravan.  
 

7.13 Condition 13(i) of the caravan site conditions states that ‘car parking spaces shall be 
provided on the site for at least one private car per mobile home’.  The condition does 
not specify where on the site the space shall be and therefore the parking space could 
be relocated and comply with the licence.  (Although this may not be favourable with 
affected residents). 

 

7



Footpaths 
 
7.14 Condition 4(i) states that ‘Every mobile home shall be connected to a road by a 

footpath with a hard surface which shall be maintained in good condition.’ 
 
7.15 The resident of number 14 currently exits the plot onto the gravelled area where the 

parking bay is situated.  Given that it is proposed that this area will form the 
garden/patio of the new plot, the applicants propose to construct a new footpath from 
the door of number 14 to join with the roadway near to the entrance to the site as 
indicated on Appendix 7. 

 
7.16 If the site licence amendment application is agreed, then the site owner should 

construct a footpath of slabs or similar in the indicated location. 
 
 
Site access for large vehicles 

 
7.17 Condition 3(i) requires roads to be designed to provide adequate access for 

emergency vehicles, and condition 3(vi) sets the general principle that roads are to be 
no less than 3.7 metres wide.  The widths are based on the maximum sizes of 
emergency vehicles attending incidents on the site. 
 

7.18 The roadway is deemed to comply with these conditions, as at its narrowest point, 
(between no. 3 and 4 and the new home) it is greater than 3.7 m wide. 

 
7.19 It is however noted that larger vehicles may be less likely to enter the site.  Residents 

have reported being required to manually transfer their refuse to the site entrance for 
collection. 

 
 
Other Considerations 
 
7.20 For over 40 years, residents have benefitted from the sense of openness provided by 

the space to the centre of the site, and the amenity that it provides.  The committee 
may note that the addition of the extra home has had an impact upon this spacious 
character of the site as a whole.  The new home is positioned to the west of number 12 
and to the south of number 14 and has an impact on the open outlook previously 
enjoyed by the occupants of these caravans. 
 

7.21 The new caravan may also block natural daylight and sunshine previously enjoyed 
within these homes and on their pitches, and the new caravan and number 14 will 
overlook each other.  

 
 
8. CONSULATION WITH RESIDENTS 
 
8.1 All residents of the 11 licensed caravans were invited to comment on the application. 

This included the site owners who live on the site.  The new residents of the additional 
twelfth home were not directly consulted with but also responded.  

 
8.2 Not including the site owners, of the other 10 residents, 4 were in favour of the new 

caravan (although one of these had previously objected), 3 were against and 3 did not 
respond.  Of those that did not respond, one had previously expressed support for the 
additional caravan.  Correspondence received is included as Appendix 8 to this report. 

 

8



8.3 The applicants also provided correspondence from a neighbour of the site in support of 
the caravan, and emails from a local estate agent giving an opinion that the new 
caravan had not negatively affected the value of other caravans on the site.  

 
8.4 Comments in favour of the additional caravan included: 

 

 the caravan did not inconvenience or affect the residents, 

 the caravan adds to the aesthetic qualities of the site, is a great asset and is in an 
ideal location, 

 the new residents are courteous, polite and friendly,  

 it is not difficult to park cars, and the caravan does not interfere with or obstruct 
parking, 

 the caravan provides needed affordable accommodation. 

 the caravan did not obscure one of the respondents view. 
 
8.5 Objections received identified two main issues concerning the loss of the open space 

and increased difficulty of driving on the site and accessing parking spaces.  The 
following specific issues were identified: 

 
8.5.1 manoeuvring vehicles:  

 A blind spot is created for vehicles going around the new caravan which 
creates a risk of an accident, 

 Difficulty getting into and out of parking spaces and the need to reverse 
into other spaces to complete manoeuvres, 

 Difficulty of access for emergency and larger vehicles such as garden 
waste vehicles, 

 Inconsiderate parking already demonstrated by occupiers, making it 
difficult for cars to access and exit the parking space for number 12, 

 Concerns that vehicles entering and exiting the parking space to 12 will 
encroach on the 2-metre separation between the home and roadway, 

 Less space for vehicles and residents, making in more hazardous for 
pedestrians on the site. 

 
8.5.2 Objections concerning the loss of amenity:  

 Loss of the open community feel in front of homes,  

 Loss of views across the site and of the previous feeling of spaciousness 
 
8.6 Other matters raised in residents’ objections: 

 Failure of site owners to consult residents about the planned addition, other than 
discussing site improvements, 

 Questions as to whether the site owners are ‘fit and proper’ to manage the site, 

 Claims of attempted coercion by the owners to get residents to write letters of 
support, including offering to allow dogs on the site, 

 Claims of intimidation by the site owners, 

 Objection to the relocation of current parking space for number 14 

 Reduced value of homes, 

 Questions over the suitability of adding the caravan without permission, and 
subsequently applying for permission, 

 Large vehicles are no longer allowed on site so residents must carry waste to the 
entrance.  When wheeled bins are introduced, they will have to be dragged 
across site, 

 Loss of peacefulness – noise and shouting from the new residents, 

 The current owners had previously removed a fountain at centre of site to 
improve vehicle access as it was considered that it impeded vehicles 
manoeuvring across the site, 

9



 Possible damage to caravans by weight and vibration of vehicles passing close, 

 Animosity and mistrust towards the site owners. 
 
8.7 The applicants (site owners), who live on the site made a number of comments, 

which are summarised as follows; the full letter is included as Appendix 9. 

 The home has been relocated from its original position to an updated position, 
which is over 6 metres from number 14, 

 Letters of support have been received from some residents, 

 The new caravan will help the small business the owners operate, and the 
upkeep of the site, 

 The statement that the value of caravans has not been negatively affected, 

 The new home represents affordable accommodation, and the residents pay 
Council Tax, 

 If the caravan has to be removed the residents will apply for Council housing, 

 It is acknowledged and regretted that the caravan was added without first seeking 
permission. 

 
8.8 Comments of occupiers of new caravan: 

 The caravan has provided a home for the family, following financial instability 
caused when unable to work whilst supporting young baby born with serious 
health issues. 

 The caravan is very small and complies with the site licence, 

 Interference by neighbour taking photographs of the family and the caravan, and 
stating to a delivery driver that there was no number 2 on the site. 

 
 
9. CONCLUSIONS 
 
9.1 Whilst many decisions with respect to caravan site licensing are administered at officer 

level, in the case of more complex or contentious issues, the General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee has delegated authority to make decisions under the Caravan 
Sites and Control of Development Act 1960. 

 
9.2 Mr C and Mrs K Fitzgerald currently hold a caravan site licence for a maximum of 11 

caravans at Fleur de Lys Park.  They have made an application to amend the 
conditions of the licence to increase the number of caravans on the park to 12.  The 
additional caravan was positioned on the site in breach of the licence conditions. 

 
9.3 Conditions have been applied to the site based on Model Standards to control the 

layout, facilities, services and equipment on the site. 
 
9.4 The additional caravan complies with the majority of the caravan site licence 

conditions and does not represent a breach of planning permission. 
 

9.5 The views of residents on the site have been sought and have given a mixed 
response.  Those in favour, considered the addition of the caravan was of little 
consequence to their enjoyment of the site, and is an asset to the site.  Those against 
the additional caravan, were primarily concerned with the loss of open space, open 
outlook, as well as difficulty for vehicles to manoeuvre around the site and possible 
relocation of a parking space.  

 

10



9.6 In addition, consultation with residents indicates that overall, there is acceptance of the 
new caravan.  Of the two residents directly affected, one has objected, and one has 
not.  
 

9.7 The inclusion of the additional caravan could be considered to negatively impact the 
overall outlook and privacy for some residents.  If approved, further work would be 
required by the site owner for all conditions on the licence to be complied with.  

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1 There are no financial implications as a result of this report. 
 
 
11. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 A reduction around the land given over as green space on the site balanced against 

provision of a new home in the district.  
 
 
12. CRIME & DISORDER AND DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
 
 
13. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 Should the Committee refuse the application, this will result in the loss of a home for 

the current residents. 
 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Site licence and conditions 
Appendix 2 – 2022 Refusal 
Appendix 3 – Before and after photographs 
Appendix 4 – Scale plan of site including the new Caravan (number 2) 
Appendix 5 – Extent of the new Caravan pitch (number 2) 
Appendix 6 – Proposed parking space for Caravan 14 
Appendix 7 – Plan showing proposed footpath for Caravan 14 
Appendix 8 – Consultation responses 
Appendix 9 – Site owners’ letter 
 
 
For further information contact: 

Ben Stockley 
Food and Safety Team Manager 
ben.stockley@nfdc.gov.uk 
 
Joanne McClay 
Service Manager 
Environmental and Regulation 
Joanne.mcclay@nfdc.gov.uk 

Background Papers: 

Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in 
England: 
https://newforest.gov.uk/media/789/caravan-
site-model-standards-2008/pdf/caravan-site-
model-standards-
2008.pdf?m=1594374008193 

 

11

mailto:ben.stockley@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:Joanne.mcclay@nfdc.gov.uk
https://newforest.gov.uk/media/789/caravan-site-model-standards-2008/pdf/caravan-site-model-standards-2008.pdf?m=1594374008193
https://newforest.gov.uk/media/789/caravan-site-model-standards-2008/pdf/caravan-site-model-standards-2008.pdf?m=1594374008193
https://newforest.gov.uk/media/789/caravan-site-model-standards-2008/pdf/caravan-site-model-standards-2008.pdf?m=1594374008193
https://newforest.gov.uk/media/789/caravan-site-model-standards-2008/pdf/caravan-site-model-standards-2008.pdf?m=1594374008193


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



From: Ben Stockley
To: kathleen fitzgerald 
Subject: Additional mobile home at Fleur de Lys Park
Date: 28 April 2022 16:48:00
Attachments: FLEUR.docx

image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png

Dear Mrs Fitzgerald,

I write with reference to your enquiry about the feasibility of adding an additional home to Fleur
de Lys Park. The site is currently licenced for 11 caravans, but I understand that through
discussions with the National Park Planning Authority, you have been told the site has planning
permission for the siting of 12 caravans. I am aware that the planning history of the site is
relatively complicated, however the boundary and number of caravans situated on the land has
been static for some time.

You will recall that you made a similar application to add an additional home to the site in 2015,
and this was heard by the Council’s General Purposes and Licensing Committee in December
2015. At that time, the proposal that you put forward, to place a new home in front of numbers
12 and 14 of the site was refused – I attach a copy of an extract of the meeting minutes for you

information. I note that in 2016 you subsequently appealed to HM Courts 1st Tier Property
Tribunal, but withdrew the appeal prior to the hearing.

When you approached me this year to revisit the matter, I reminded you of the Committee’s
decision, and that any new application would need to be significantly different to the original
proposal to warrant fresh consideration. As a reminder, I sent you a copy of the plan that you
originally had drawn up indicating the precise location of the new home. When we subsequently
spoke about the matter, you told me that this plan as drafted, remained the best option for the
site.

On this basis, I am unable to consider your application, as it is identical to the one previously
refused. I would suggest that you have two options at this point – firstly, you may consider the
feasibility of siting a new home elsewhere on the site, which may be considered to be a separate

proposal. Secondly, you may wish to consider appealing the 2015 Committee decision via the 1st

Tier Property Tribunal.

I would be happy to discuss this matter with you if you are unclear or require further advice.

Ben Stockley

Ben Stockley
Food and Safety Team Manager
New Forest District Council
Tel: 023 8028 5348  

ben.stockley@nfdc.gov.uk
www.newforest.gov.uk 

APPENDIX 2

23



24



FLEUR-DE-LYS MOBILE HOME PARK  

3 December 2015 

The Committee considered an application for the amendment of the site licence conditions to 
enable the placing of an additional home on the site at Fleur-de-Lys Mobile Home Park. The 
current site licence condition 1(a) provided that the total number of residential caravans on 
the site should not exceed 11 at any time. There were currently 11 occupied caravans on the 
site. The application requested an alteration to the site licence conditions to provide that the 
total number of caravans on the site does not exceed 12 at any time. The application also 
sought an amendment to condition 3 of the site licence, reducing the permitted separation 
distance between caravans from 6 metres to 5.25 metres.  

A letter from the applicant’s Solicitors, Tozers, had been circulated to the Committee in 
advance of the meeting. The letter set out the applicant’s case and was read out in full by 
the Chairman and circulated to all parties present for their consideration.  

The applicant, Mrs Fitzgerald briefly addressed the Committee following submission of the 
letter. Mrs Fitzgerald said that since purchasing the site, various steps had been taken to 
improve the general condition of the site, such as obtaining the necessary electrical 
certificate as well as improving the drainage. With reference to the loss of parking space for 
plot number 14, she referred to the fact that the resident of number 14 currently did not have 
a designated parking space, and often parked on the gravel open space by her mobile 
home. The proposed application would however give plot 14 a designated parking space. 
Mrs Fitzgerald referred to the fact that Hampshire Fire and Rescue had not objected to the 
proposal nor expressed concerns.  

Miss Knight, speaking on behalf of the residents of Fleur-de-Lys Mobile Home Park, 
addressed the Committee. Miss Knight said that residents of the site strongly opposed the 
application for the siting of an additional caravan on the following grounds: -  

• The proposal would restrict the entry (and egress) to the park to 3.7 metres. This would 
restrict the view of motorists increasing the chances of potential motoring accidents on the 
site.  

• The proposed 3.7 metre distance from the proposed home to that of current plot number 4 
could mean that vibrations from traffic concentrated nearer to plot 4 and the new home could 
put undue pressure on the integrity of the homes resulting in structural damage. Members 
were reminded that the mobile homes were made of wood, not steel construction.  

• The 3.7 metre path between the proposed home and plot number 4 was illogical and 
impractical in terms of road usage as it created a narrow entry point to the site. Coupled with 
the fact that the 8.1 metre distance between the proposed new home and plot 8 would 
further restrict turning/manoeuvring of larger vehicles, this posed a risk to drivers turning 
cars on the site, as there would be limited space to manoeuvre and would create ‘blind 
spots’ for drivers. Residents were concerned at the effect of the restricted turning space on 
the access and egress of emergency vehicles.  

• Currently all residents had a clear view of the open space and the new home would 
severely impact on the outlook and privacy of residents, particularly residents at plots 
number 4, 12 and 14. The character and amenity value of the park would be lost.  

• The Applicant’s proposal would be in breach of the licence condition as the distance 
between the proposed new home and the home on plot 14 was 5.25 metres, not 6 metres as 
required by the licence condition.  

25



The Chairman read out a statement from Cllr Wise, local ward member, who was unable to 
attend the meeting. Cllr Wise requested that the Committee support the officer’s 
recommendation to refuse the application on the grounds that the proposal detracted from 
the amenity space available to residents and the proposal would restrict access to the site, 
posing a health and safety risk, particularly to emergency vehicles.  

Following the presentations, Members were given the opportunity to question the applicant 
and the residents’ spokesperson in turn.  

In coming to their decision, the Committee had regard to the Caravan Sites and Control of 
Development Act 1960 and the Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England and all 
of the representations made to them.  

The Committee felt that the central area of the site was critical to its physical character, and 
that the siting of an additional caravan on this space would lead to the loss of the amenity 
value of the space. This impact would particularly be considered by the residents of plots 14 
and 12. The proposed new home would also have a detrimental impact on the privacy of the 
resident at plot 14.  

Members were shown an aerial image of the site and noted that this showed more clearly 
than the plans that the existing homes on the site were very close together, and another 
home in the space proposed would leave the site feeling very cramped.  

In addition, members considered that whilst the separation distance between plots 6 and 7 
was 5.25 metres, this had been an exception and it would not be appropriate to alter the site 
licence conditions to include a general permission for the separation distance to be 5.25 
metres. The separation distance of 6 metres accords with the Model Standard Conditions 
and was imposed in the interests of persons dwelling on the site, for reasons of health and 
safety and privacy.  

The Environmental Health Manager advised members that following the submission of an 
altered plan by the Applicant’s Solicitors which shows the parking spaces with larger 
dimensions, the following sentence should be deleted from the recommendation as it no 
longer applied: -  

“The parking spaces provided for plots 14 and the new home would not comply with the 
minimum dimensions required, and would be impractical”.  

The Committee supported this amendment.  

RESOLVED:  

That the application from Mr and Mrs Fitzgerald be refused on the following grounds: The 
central, gravelled area gives the park an open, spacious feel and is key to the character of 
the park. Siting an additional home in this space would leave the park feeling cramped, and 
would be of real detriment to the visual amenity that the central space offers to all residents. 
The detrimental impact on amenity would be particularly significant for the residents of plots 
12 and 14. The new home would have a significant impact on the privacy of the resident of 
plot 14. It is not appropriate to amend the conditions to enable the site owners to reduce the 
separation distance between mobile homes on the site to 5.25 metres, because the existing 
condition requiring a separation distance of 6 metres has been imposed for the health and 
safety, and privacy of persons dwelling in caravans on the site. 

26



Appendix 3 - Fleur de Lys, before and after photographs 
 

 

1 above – View L-R of 14, 12 and 11 (11 has since been replaced), 2 below – showing open area in 

front of 14 and  12. 

 

APPENDIX 3 

27



Appendix 3 - Fleur de Lys, before and after photographs 
 

 

3 above – View from 14 diagonally across the site towards L-R, 8, 7, 6 and 5. 4 below – view from 

outside 11 towards L-R, 3 and 14. The entrance to the site passes between these caravans. 

 

28



Appendix 3 - Fleur de Lys, before and after photographs 
 

 

5 above – Showing L-R, 14, 12 and the new caravan. 6 below – Showing L-R the new caravan, 12 and 

11. 

 

29



Appendix 3 - Fleur de Lys, before and after photographs 
 

 

7 above – View new home from outside number 11 (note, caravan has since been moved 0.75m 

towards the camera). 8 below – view from entrance to site, showing 14 on left with the new caravan 

beyond. 

 

30



APPENDIX 4

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6 – Proposed Parking space for number 14 
 

 

Photograph shows number 14 to the left, and the new caravan to the right. 

APPENDIX 6 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7

37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 8

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



From: Andrew Farr
To: Ben Stockley; Cllr Dan Poole; Vince
Subject: My commenyts as invited in your letter
Date: 15 March 2024 09:44:51

If you have already received this I apologise as my email is behaving strangely!

Re: Fleur de Lys Park

Dear Mr. Stockley,

You have already received a fair number of communications from me on the subject of
the illegal 12th. unit sited here. I have sent you many messages in WhatsApp which
outline aspects of the site owner’s behaviour. Please refer to them in your deliberations.

My partner, Maggie Macro has outlined a number of objections so I shall try not to
repeat them but in not repeating does not mean they are not my objections too.

I would say again that we are aware of previous attempts to make changes which have
been denied and rightly so. We are also aware that the fountain, the centrepiece of the
park, was removed to improve vehicular access. This is ironic given what they have put
in its place!!

Maggie has made reference to vehicular access to which I would add that the
Fitzgeralds park sometimes very inconsiderately. (Because it's their site and they can
do what they like)

Going back to the beginning we are dealing with lies and deceit and to quote a remark
by Mrs Thompson who is trying sell number 14, (Price dropped from over £170k to
under £140k since the new siting!), “Her, (Mrs. Fitzgerald), lies flow like honey” this was
on arriving home and finding a Fitzgerald vehicle on her pitch for a second time!

No notice was given in writing to advise of their plan to sneak another unit onto the site.
Mrs Fitzgerald was swearing blind that she had a licence for 12.
 A scrap of hand written paper appeared on the notice board  in July to say that some
improvements to the site would be carried out. Working practices displayed in the laying
of the new electricity supply would have given Health and Safety a field day!

We have all talked about the sudden arrival of shuttering followed by concrete. We
watched the site owners disappear when an initial notice to cease and desist was given.
We watched with horror when the new unit arrived. The time taken was at least 5 hours
that the site access  was blocked and we who had been given no notice were unable to
leave unless on foot. 
Prior to that we had Mr. Fitzgerald's attempt to coerce residents into writing letters of
support. Those who outright refused were told, “We’re doing it anyway!” Some may
have agreed, possibly fearing repercussions from a couple reported by a neighbour to
be spiteful and vindictive.

47



The son, his lady and baby moved in. I have given an example video of the disgusting
behaviour between mother and son, but there were more events not recorded or passed
on.  The police were notified of one because the event gave rise to fear alarm and
distress, 

There is a fear among some that the council will take the easier route and allow the
application and get some council tax out of it! We trust that NFDC will set an example to
authorities around the country who are seemingly turning a blind eye to examples of
regulation infraction. The Panorama programme this week clearly exposed the general
conduct among many site owners and the Park Home Owners Justice Campaign
championed by Sir Peter Bottomley is gaining momentum to address several issues
adversely affecting Park Home owners.

One of the duties of a site owner is to maintain the infrastructure, water, gas, electricity
and the like and to repair the perimeter fencing. The only work that I have seen during
our four years here was to their own advantage. I have recounted the ridiculous story of
Mr. Fitzgerald’s  attempt to replace a small foul drain cover by dropping all the broken
parts into the drain! This blocked the drains from our unit and our neighbour Lizzie
Smith at no.5.
The Fitzgeralds’  actions have ruined the amenity of the site, lowering values and
rendering the place less safe for pedestrians and drivers alike. The new unit has no
available curtilage for parking, or garden/patio.

The site dimensions have not  miraculously increased simply because Mrs. Fitzgerald
wants and usually gets her own way. She is a wily woman, and has been seen smiling
beatifically up into the faces of those she wishes to influence, demonstrating an attitude
of coercion
. 
Interfering with the curtilage of Miss Knight’s unit would be the ultimate insult. She has
bravely resisted attempts to intimidate her. A resident of more than 40 years, she should
be left alone with a parking space whether or not she has a motor car! There has been
a further attempt at intimidation which Miss knight may have relayed to you and which
almost certainly has been recounted to Sir Julian Lewis who declared an interest in
learning of such behaviour.

I have relayed a brief account of Charlie Fitzgerald’s visit last evening. Once again
though, he refused to address Maggie who is, in fact, the owner of this unit, insisting it
was “more polite to speak with the gentleman”!! This ignorance infuriated her but she
did manage to make the point about devaluation of everyone's unit. Not pleased, to put
it mildly, I made it clear that I knew that their offer to allow dogs was simply a childish
attempt at coercion yet again. In a very heated discussion he again wailed that he had
planning permission for 12 units, reminded us that one day the site would belong to his
son, ( a veiled threat?), whined that he needed a place for his poor son, and grandson
who we know was born with a serious defect. I pointed out that I, married at that age,

48



had a child who spent months in hospital but managed without help from my parents.
After a few more exchanges Charlie, now furious, stormed off. Not a pleasant event.

To my mind these people are Not “Fit and Proper” for the role of site owners.

Yours sincerely,

Andrew Farr,  

49



From: Maggie Macro
To: Ben Stockley
Cc: Cllr Dan Poole; vincent.slattery@boldre.org.uk; ; Boldre Parish Council
Subject: Comments on Fleur de Lys License Amendment Application (now signed)
Date: 15 March 2024 11:19:19

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from Learn why this
is important at https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ]

>
> Dear Mr Stockley,
>
> As an owner and resident of a home in Fleur de Lys Park I welcome the opportunity to comment on the
application to amend the site license and allow the siting of the additional home.
>
> We were greatly surprised by the appearance of first the slab and then the new dwelling in August 2023 as we
had not been given the required 4 weeks notice about an alteration to the site.
>
> I am aware that several attempts have been made over the years to  amend the license to allow 12 homes
instead of the 11, for which the site is  suited, and they have been denied.  Nothing about the site conditions has
changed since then.
>
> When I bought my home here in 2020 the park had an open community feel.  Most homes had a view of the
others and we could ”look out” for one another.  This is now ruined by the placement of the additional unit, 
particularly for plots 12 and 14 as their views are blocked.  The whole atmosphere of the park has changed to
one of animosity and I now regret buying a home here, especially since my home, along with all the others has
most likely dropped in value now.  Most of us are retired and our main investment and safety net for the future
is diminished.  This is grossly unfair.  An example of this is the fact that unit 12 has been on the market and the
price has gradually been lowered by K30 with no interest shown by buyers. I have friends who have viewed that
property and were appalled at the outlook and I am now embarrassed to invite my guests here as the site has
been made to look ridiculous.
>
> The placement of the extra home has made traffic movement difficult and dangerous.
> Vehicles have to do a lot of reversing.  Large vehicles, such as the green waste lorry,  have been banned from
entering the park by the owners.  This means that our sacks have to be taken to the car park.  When the wheeled
bins come into use in April we will have to drag them over an expanse of gravel.  This will be difficult if not
impossible.  The banning of large vehicles points to the fact that the owners realise the traffic flow is now
dangerous.
>
> The front door of the new unit opens onto the area where cars are parked and vehicles travel.  It does not
allow for the 6 metres of space needed for safety to the “roadway”.  As there is a young child resident in the
new unit this will be doubly dangerous in future.
>
> During one prior application to amend the license the owner’s solicitors stated “Our clients quite recently
removed the fountain in the open space as it impeded motor vehicles manoeuvring in the area”.   Now there is a
home in its place.  Obviously traffic is now even more impeded.
>
> Each unit is provided with a parking space.  This is impossible to provide for the new unit as to do so would
completely impede the flow of traffic.
>
> These homes are known as mobile homes.  They have the ability to be moved and replaced if needed.  This
would now be impossible for several of the homes on the site due to the lack of space.
>
> I’d also like to make you aware that on Monday 11th. March 2024 there was a Panorama program about
rogue park home owners.  And there is an All-Party Parliamentary Group on Park Homes headed by Sir
Christopher Chope.  I recently received  the minutes of the meeting of Jan. 29th 2024 in which Sir Peter
Bottomley stated “there wasn’t sufficient publicity about these cases.  The park owners are not acting fairly,
knowing that residents possibly didn’t have the resources to deal with abuses themselves.  It was vital to ensure
that ordinary people did not suffer, and the full force of the law was brought to bear on those who inflicted the

50



suffering”.
> We have certainly been suffering since August.  Our mental health and quality of life are diminished, let alone
my assets in this home.
>
> Due to the Panorama program the behaviour of park home owners has caught the attention of the press and
there was an invitation on the Park Home Owners Justice Campaign Facebook page to contact Aiden Radnedge
at the Mail online, which I have done.
>
> On Wednesday evening Mr. Fitzgerald came to our door and, refusing to speak to me the owner, informed
Andrew Farr we could now have a dog.  Whereas the letter he gave us invited comments about this issue from
some residents.  Right here is an incidence of the deceit and coercion perpetrated by these owners, saying
outright we could have a dog when in fact it was only a possible discussion.
>
> There is nothing that would persuade us to agree to the siting of this new unit and we urge the licensing
committee to deny this application.

Yours Sincerely,

Margaret Macro
Owner, 7 Fleur De Lys Park

>
>
>

51



52



Mrs. Fitzgerald did show me a letter from yourself, dated 2022, which stated that
there was no issue from a planning perspective, but that site regulations only allow
for 11. To be honest I found the letter somewhat ambiguous and Mrs. Fitzgerald
clearly took it to mean she could go ahead with the new unit. 
So the timing is all wrong; The additional caravan has been placed (albeit probably
within planning, in terms of space between units etc) but without the site regulation
being met. 
To now, retrospectively, apply for a change in the site regulations to allow for 12
units rather than 11 is not the way to do things. 
In light of the last point I feel the authorities should be very careful that a precedent
isn’t set by allowing this retrospective application. 

 
It’s a difficult situation because, had they gone about things in a correct manner it
may have been different. Having said that, I understand that a similar application
for 12 units was made prior to my time (I moved in August 2019) and that this was
turned down. I’m sure the same concerns which led to the decision then must also
apply now, as all other things are equal. 
 
In closing, I would like to say that I don’t have any issues personally with Mr. and
Mrs. Fitzgerald and we have a very much ‘live and let live’ existence and I hope
that this will continue. 
 
I look forward to hearing the outcome following the meeting in April. If you require
any further details or clarification, please do get in touch. 
 
Regards 
Tim Vincent 

Sent with Proton Mail secure email.

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



14.03.2024 My Representations 

[Page 1] 

From Miss P Knight, 14 Fleur de Lys Park, Pilley, SO41 5QJ 
14 March 2024  

Dear Chairperson of General Purposes and Licensing Committee. 

I am sending you copies of my representations about the application/the additional caravan 
on the site. I learnt from Mr Stockley he only does a summary of what we say so it ends up 
what he thinks to leave in or out you don’t see our representations at all and this is not 
justice for the residents.  

Mr Stockley will not summarise Tozer’s representations at all. Then I feel you should be 
made aware of the wider picture from the residents point of view. 

I can remember in 2015 you read out Tozers representations although the park owners 
Fitzgerald were in the chamber!!!!  

If you are the same Chairperson!!!? 

Pamela Knight  

[Page 2] 

We thoroughly object to a twelfth additional home already been sited on the Fleur-de-Lys 

Park at Pilley, 11 August 2023. The unreasonable, wilful way the additional twelfth home has 

already been sited on a WHIM and disregard without the NFDC permission and clearly in 

breach of the site licence conditions and the 2015 determination against the park owner 

Fitzgerald and cannot in any way shape or form be accepted by the Council’s general 

purposes and licence committee. The Council also did a compliance order against the park 

owners Fitzgerald NOT because of the six meter difference between homes but because the 

additional twelfth home shouldn’t already be sited on the park without your permission, so 

you have no justification to change it to the park owners favour against the residents. If you 

did it would bring the authority into disrepute and ridicule because you would be going 

against your own licensing rules and it would start a precedent that a cavalier approach and 

disregard remaining unchallenged to site licensing rules, whereby park owners can disregard 

at will and WHIM what they can do on caravan parks as has happened here at the Fleur-de-

Lys Park Pilley. We only want 11 homes to be sited. 

Also 

I ask that the compliance order issued against them 30 November 2023 to stand against the 

park owners Fitzgerald and for the removal of this already wilfully sited twelfth home to be 

removed. 

Typed Transcript of Miss Knight's handwritten document

67



14.03.2024  My Representations 

Also 

I ask for this 2024 application to site this already sited additional twelfth caravan to be 

refused and the licence be for 11 homes only on the Fleur-de-Lys Park 

Pamela Knight 

 

There was no consultation from the park owners about siting a twelfth additional caravan 

and all the residents were all very shocked and dismayed and angry and outraged on 7 

August 2023 when a base was being laid against councils rules and in breach of 2015 

determination not to have 12 home on the park. 

 

[Page 3] 

Letters wanted by the park owners Fitzgeralds from the residents for accepting the already 

sited twelfth additional home. 

On 7 August 2023 Mr Fitzgerald went to residents homes to ask them to write accepting an 

additional home on the park. They are relying on these accepting letters. This must have 

been an important issue to the park owners otherwise they wouldn’t of asked the residents. 

He didn’t ask them for any other matters to their letters. None of us knew about a twelfth unit 

being sited until 7 August 2023. There was never any consultations with the residents by the 

park owners at any time. So I took it upon myself to go to the residents about writing one to 

the park owners. 

PLOT 3 Didn’t want to be involved so didn’t write an accepting letter. 

PLOT 4 When I asked him was he for or against it. He told me not to be an idiot, he 

didn’t want to know so he didn’t write an accepting letter. 

PLOT 5 Resident is absolutely against it so didn’t write an accepting letter. 

PLOT 6 Don’t know 

PLOT 7 Were asked to write an accepting letter but told Mr Fitzgerald to his face, NO 

LETTER 

PLOT 8 Residents were asked for an accepting letter but said NO letter to his face 

PLOT 9 Resident told Mr Fitzgerald to his face wasn’t going to write an accepting 

letter 

68



14.03.2024 My Representations 

PLOT 10 Was the same to Mr Fitzgerald, NO accepting letter 

PLOT 12 & 14 We weren’t even asked to write an accepting letter but we said NO. 

9/10 Units said NO to the twelfth home being sited by NOT writing an acceptance letter 

because that is all the park owners wanted off the resident. Enforcement 33 from 2008 

model standards should also seek the views and take account of representations affected 

residents which is me Miss P Knight there is no limit on the park for the number of mobile 

homes that MAY be located on it all of the residents want 11 homes on the park only so it is 

a foregone conclusion that a wilfully already twelfth impeding 33 x14mobile home needs to 

be located on it and already without council permission 

[Page 4] 

Neither the council or the park owners have the right to alter anything on my pitch and my 

dedicated parking space or the 2mtrs separating distance around it because it was already 

in place before they came here and they have to accept it as it is. 

My 39 years old parking space which is shown on this court order plan of no 9306124, 

21.04.94 and Mark Barney the then park owner of the Fleur-de-Lys Park was a signatory too 

is binding on any future park owner and it cannot be altered in any way at all. 

The park owners Fitzgerald through their solicitors Tozers have sought to go to the council 

behind my back without even discussing it with me to get alterations around or on my pitch 

when they do not have the right in law to do so. I have taken great exception to this. I am not 

going to have a shed, patio or a moved car parking space right outside my kitchen window. 

My dedicated parking space was lain in 1991 where it says “existing curb” and this plan was 

done June 1993 and the court order plan proves it 

If I have to take court proceedings at all I will use this court order plan of February 21 19994 

as irrevocable proof that nothing around my pitch including my dedicated parking space of 

33 yrs cannot be altered for anything else for the park owners Fitzgeralds gratification. 

[Page 5] 

Plan 

[Page 6] 

69



14.03.2024 My Representations 

The park owners Fitzgerald removed a fountain in the open space as it impeded motor 

vehicles manoeuvring in the open space. That fountain in the open space has been replaced 

by 33ft x 14ft caravan. The size of that impeding caravan has swamped that open space and 

will badly impede traffic and has to be removed because the park home owners say so. The 

position of the impeding will put residents and car drivers lives at risk also with the daily 

threat of a vehicle collision with it and this is unacceptable and is an accident waiting to 

happen. This open space in front of plot 14 isn’t just a view it is an open space of various 

degrees required for the safe usage of any type of vehicle using the park. It is a daily 

necessity before the impeding additional home was wilfully sited the open space was easy 

safe access for 11 caravans use as you can see by the plan that has been diminished by 

half, so 11 caravan users now have to use that slashed half hazard area. The weight and 

vibration from all the vehicles will eventually damage the impeding additional caravans’ 

foundations without the residents realising it. Both 2 mtr separation distances of the caravan 

will be driven on and start to become part of the 3.7 mtrs roadway which is the only single 

road access/exit serving the park and far too narrow to be plausible. The 3.7 mtrs roadway 

left (the other half ben taken up by 33 x 14 impeding caravan) is too narrow illogical and 

impractical. The 8.1 m distance between plot 8 and caravan is insufficient and lunatic to be 

contemplated because its size will have been cut by the 2m separation distance from the 

wilfully sited impeding additional home. The 3.7 and 8.1 m track road are completely 

unsuitable illogical and unsafe and are not fit for purpose with the other open space being 

swamped by a 33 x 14 wilfully already impeding sited caravan permanently unavailable. 

[Page 7] 

If an additional caravan cannot be placed on the site without the constant threat of impeding 

to motor vehicle manoeuvring and in other ways then it should not be placed on the site and 

be burdensome and put residents lives at risk  

[photo of site] 

The sheer aggravation of the manoeuvring and in other ways on a daily basis twenty four 

seven 365 days a year would grind the residents down and be burdensome to 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 

10, 11, 12. It will block off the parking spaces of 11 and 12 especially with the 2mt separation 

distance around the front of the already impeding additional hazard caravan. How ouwld it 

be shown if it is by my kerb stones they would be an impeding stick up hazard in the 

70



14.03.2024  My Representations 

roadway causing a threat to all vehicles if they are flattened to the 2mt separation distance 

would eventually become part of the roadway “ridiculous” and the impeding hazard 

additional caravan would daily face the threat of a vehicle collision very burdensome. The 

above photo shows the area by the fountain and the rest of the open space along to my 

pitch would be SWAMPED by the already sited IMPEDING additional caravan hazard and 

lost for traffic use. We well maybe a small park but we have a lot of traffic using the park. 

 

[Page 8] 

Magazine extract 

 

[Page 9]  

Site plan 

This red open space in front of plot 14 isn’t just a view. It is anopen space of various degrees 

required for the safe usage of any type of vehicle. The open space was an easy safe access 

for a caravan resident but that has been dimished by half. So 11 caravan residents and other 

types of vehicles have to use the green squshed suffocating crowded HALF HAZARD open 

space. All of hazard gravel. 

 

[Addendum received 19 March 2024] 

Miss P Knight 
14 Fleur de Lys Park 

Pilley Hill 
Pilley 

SO41 5QJ 
18.3.2024 

Dear Mr Stockley 

Further to my letter to you, 14.3.2024 via my representatives can you add this please! 

I object to a twelfth home already additional here being sited. So ask for the application from 
the park owners for a amendment for licence condition 1a to be refused 

 

1a Tozers say the total number of residential caravans on the site shall not exceed 12 at 
any one time. 

But 

71



14.03.2024 My Representations 

1a the total number of residential caravans shall not exceed 11 at any time (introduction 
1.1. says)  

So the additional twelfth caravan has already been sited is in breach of the condition 
1a and has to be removed with no quibbling whatsoever. 

Pamela Knight 

72



73



74



75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Application to amend site licence conditions at Fleur de Lys Caravan Park
	Appendix 1 - Site Licence and Conditions
	Appendx 2 - 2022 Refusal
	Appendx 2 - Additional mobile home at Fleur de Lys Park
	Appendx 2b - Additional mobile home at Fleur de Lys Park

	Appendix 3 - Before and After Photographs
	Appendix 4 - Scale plan of site including the new Caravan (number 2)
	Appendix 5 - Extent of the new Caravan pitch (number 2)
	Appendix 6 - Proposed parking space for Caravan 14
	Appendix 7_Plan showing proposed footpath for Caravan 14
	Appendix 8_Consultation Responses
	Appendix 9 - Site owners’ letter




